










































































STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
As at June 30, 2019

30 June   30 June   
ASSETS Note 2019     2018     
Non-Current Assets                                                                                           ............ (Rupees in '000) ...........
Property, plant and equipment 5 5,080,282 5,201,352
Long term deposits 6 6,936 6,936
Investment 7 242,121 243,187

5,329,339 5,451,475
Current Assets
Stores and spares 8 71,583 72,984
Stock-in-trade 9 1,470,640 1,211,228
Trade debts 10 71,201 103,498
Loan and advances 11 28,950 46,319
Trade deposits 12 59,489 16,855
Other receivables 13 33,479 65,654
Advance tax - net of provision 14 (2,962) 34,992
Cash and bank balances 15 10,428 40,951

1,742,808 1,592,481
TOTAL ASSETS 7,072,147 7,043,956

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share Capital and Reserves
Share Capital 16 554,844 554,844
Share premium 109,437 109,437
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 17 2,997,349 3,092,182
General reserves 40,000 40,000
Unappropriated profit 1,352,809 1,259,790
Total equity 5,054,439 5,056,253
Non-Current Liabilities
Long Term Financing-Secured 18 —     1,986 
Deferred liabilities 19 1,175,302 1,181,752

1,175,302 1,183,738
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 758,607 697,658
Short term sponsors' advances 21 83,180 65,636
Short term borrowings 22 —     35,029 
Current portion of non-current liabilities 23 619 1,142
Accrued markup —     4,500 

842,406 803,965
TOTAL LIABILITIES 2,017,708 1,987,703
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 24
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 7,072,147 7,043,956

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Sami Muhammad Musab
Chief  Executive Director Manager Finance & Accounts
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
For the year ended June 30, 2019

30 June   30 June   
Note 2019     2018    

                                                                                                                          ............ (Rupees in '000) .............

Revenue from contract with customers (Net) 25 501,103 854,804

Cost of revenue from contract with customers 26 (368,540) (727,554)

Gross Profit 132,563 127,250

Selling and distribution cost 27 (13,929) (13,069)

Administrative expenses 28 (71,880) (84,010)

(85,809) (97,079)

46,754 30,171

Other operating charges 29 (6,439) (4,567)

Other operating income 30 41,170 30,817

81,485 56,421

Finance cost 31 (48,577) (41,722)

Profit before taxation 32,908 14,699

Taxation 32 (30,703) 53,175

Profit after taxation 2,205 67,874

                                                                                                                          .................. (Rupees) ..................

Earnings per share - basic and diluted 33 0.04 1.22

                                                                                                                          ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
Earnings Before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and 

Amortisation (EBITDA) 256,681 282,688

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Sami Muhammad Musab
Chief  Executive Director Manager Finance & Accounts
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended June 30, 2019

30 June   30 June   
Note 2019     2018    

                                                                                                                          ............ (Rupees in '000) .............

Profit after taxation 2,205 67,874

Other comprehensive income  —   —   

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently
to profit and loss account 

–  Remeasurement of defined benefit obligation 19.1.5 (5,660) (1,682)

    Surplus realised on transfer of assets to HPY —   177,600 

–  Impact of tax 1,642 19,050

(4,019) 194,968

Total comprehensive income for the period (1,814) 262,842

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Sami Muhammad Musab
Chief  Executive Director Manager Finance & Accounts
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended June 30, 2019

30 June  30 June   
Note 2019    2018    

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES                                           ............ (Rupees in '000) .............

Profit before taxation 32,908 14,699 
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 177,369 184,337 
Amortisation —    208 
Loss of investment in joint venture 1,232 —    
Finance costs 48,577 41,722 
Workers' profit participation fund 1,967 946 
Workers' Welfare Fund 4,472 3,560 
Provision for Leave encashment —    108 
Provision of Staff gratuity 16,999 13,727 

250,616 244,608 
Operating cash flows before working capital changes 283,524 259,307 
Changes in working capital 34 (160,362) (58,636) 
Cash generated from operations 123,162 200,671 
Finance costs paid (14,192) (13,536) 
Leave encashment paid —    (106) 
Staff gratuity paid (2,442) (5,225) 
Workers' Welfare Fund (4,144) —    
Income taxe paid (21,419) (50,940) 

(42,197) (69,807) 
Net cash generated from operating activities 80,965 130,864 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Addition to property, plant and equipment (56,299) (34,563) 
Decrease in property,plant and equipment —    243,187 
Increase in investing durign the year —    (243,187) 
Long-term investment in joint venture (166) —    
Net cash (used) from investing activities (56,465) (34,563) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Long Term Financing paid (2,509) (205) 
Short term borrowings (35,029) —    
Short term Sponsors' advances received / (paid) 17,544 1,679 
Net cash (used) / generated from financing activities (19,994) 1,474 
Net increase in cash & cash equivalent 4,506 97,775 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 5,922 (91,853) 
Cash and cash equivalent at end of the year 35 10,428 5,922 

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements. 

Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Sami Muhammad Musab
Chief  Executive Director Manager Finance & Accounts
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
For the year ended June 30, 2019

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up

capital 

Share
premium

General
reserve 

Revaluation 
Surplus

Unappropriated
profit Total

                                             ......................................................... Rs. ‘000’...........................................................

Balance as at 01 July 2017 554,844 109,437 40,000 3,241,684 897,960 4,843,925 

Total comprehensive income 
for the year

Profit for the year —    —    —    —    67,874 67,874 

Reveral of surplus on revalutation —    —    —    (50,514) —    (50,514) 

Other comprehensive income —    —    —    196,162 (1,194) 194,968 

Total comprehensive income 
for the year —    —    —    145,648 66,680 212,328 

Suplus realised on transfer —    —    —    (196,162) 196,162 —    

Transfer from surplus on revaluation 
of property, plant and equipment 
- net of deferred tax —    —    —    (98,988) 98,988 —    

Balance as at 30-Jun-2018     554,844 109,437 40,000 3,092,182 1,259,790 5,056,253 

Balance as at 01 July 2018 554,844 109,437 40,000 3,092,182 1,259,790 5,056,253 

Total comprehensive income 
for the period

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income —    —    —    —    2,205 2,205 

Total comprehensive income 
for the year —    —    —    —    (4,019) (4,019) 

—    —    —    —    (1,814) (1,814) 

Transfer from surplus on property, 
plant and equipment - net of
deferred tax —    —    —    (94,833) 94,833 —    

Balance as at 30 June 2019     554,844 109,437 40,000 2,997,349 1,352,809 5,054,439 

The annexed notes from 1 to 42 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Sami Muhammad Musab
Chief  Executive Director Manager Finance & Accounts
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended June 30, 2019

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
1.1 Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited (“the Company”) was incorporated in Pakistan on October 9, 1983 as a

public company limited by shares. The shares of the Company are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX)
(formerly divided into KSE & LSE). The principal objective and business of the Company is manufacturing and
selling of seamless steel pipes and tubes (tubular products). The Company also has a coating facility capable of
applying three layer high density polyethylene coating, polypropylene coating and tape coating on steel pipes.
The registered office of the Company is situated at 207-210, Mashriq Center, Block 14, Gulshan-e-Iqbal, Karachi
and the factory of the Company is located at Nooriabad, District Jamshoro, Sindh province.

1.2 These are stand alone financial statements of Huffaz Seamless Pipe Industries Limited. Consolidated financial
statement have not been prepared by the Company as disclosed in note-7

2. SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTION AND EVENTS AFFECTING THE COMPANY'S FINANCIAL POSITION AND
PERFORMANCE

2.1 Company spend Rs. 52,207 thousand in CWIP in respect of plant and ,machinery item. The company expect to
complete the project in the ensuing period. The project represents 'Spiral Welded Plant' having the capacity of
producing 100,000 matric tons. The plant is expected to increase the size  of activities and operations of the
company.

2.2 Sales in the year was Rs.501,103 thousand compared to 854,804 thousand in the year 2018 due to the effect of
stiff competition and high taxation impact on steel product.

2.3 Finance cost in the year was 48,577 thousand compared to 41,722 thousand in year 2018. This included interest
on outstanding WPPF balance Rs.38,885 thousand compared to the 26,026 thousand in the year 2018. While the 
outstanding balance of WPPF stood at Rs.358,284 thousand compared to 317,431 thousand in the year 2018.

2.4 During the year 2018 company made investment in Joint Venture company in accordance with the Joint Venture
Agreement. Company's assets including Land, Building and Coating Shed have been transferred at Rs. 243
million as a consideration for making investment for which equity share capital in the said company was allowed.
Value of the assets have been arrived at on the basis of revaluation exercise carried out by an independent
professional valuer in the year 2018. For details please refer Note: 7. In the current year no operating activity was
performed.

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION
3.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan comprise of: 
– International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting

Standard Board (IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and
– Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.
Where the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of
IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

3.2 Basis of measurement
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that:
– the obligations under employees’ defined benefit plan which are measured at present value of defined

benefits less fair value of plan assets; and
– the leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds are stated at fair values which

are determined by the independent valuer.
3.3 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company’s functional currency. All
amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise indicated.

3.4 Amendments to accounting standards and new IFRS interpretation that are effective for the year ended
June 30, 2017
The following standards, amendments and interpretations are  effective for the year ended June 30, 2017. These
standards, interpretations and the amendments are either not relevant to the Company's operations or are not
expected to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional
disclosures. 
IAS 7 'Statement of cash flows' amendments introduced an additional disclosure that will enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing activities. The amendment is part of IASB's
Disclosure initiative which continues to explore how financial statements disclosure can be improved. In the first
year of adoption comparative information need not be provided. The relevant disclosure in these financial
statements.
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The Companies Act, 2017 ( the act ) has also  brought certain changes with regard to preparation and
presentation of annual financial statements of the Company. The changes in respect of recognition criteria of
revaluation of operating fixed assets as more fully explained in note# 5.Further, the disclosure requirements
contained in the Forth Schedule to the Act have been revised, resulting in the elimination of duplicative
disclosures with the IFRS disclosure requirements and incorporation of significant additional disclosure which
have been included in these financial statements.
Amendments to accounting standards and new IFRS interpretation that are effective but not relevant
There are certain new standards, amendments to the approved accounting standards and new interpretations
that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after July 01, 2017.
However these do not have any significant impact on the company's financial reporting and therefore have not
been detailed in these financial statements.
–   IFRS 10 – Consolidated Financial Statements
–   IFRS 11 –  Joint Arrangements
–   IFRS 12 – Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
–   IFRS 13 – Fair Value Measurement
–   IAS 23 Borrowing Cost
–   IAS 27 (Revised 2011) – Separate Financial Statements
–   IAS 28 (Revised 2011) – Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

3.5 New accounting standards and amendments to accounting standards that are not yet effective
The following new accounting standards and amendments to accounting standards are only effective for
accounting periods, beginning on or after July 01, 2018 that may have impact on the financial statements of the
company.
Standards / Amendments Effective date (accounting periods

beginning on or after)
– Amendments to IFRS 2 'Share-based Payment' 

- Clarification on the classification and measurement 
of share-based payment transactions January 1, 2018

– Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements' 
and IAS 28 'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' 
- Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its 
associate or joint venture January 1, 2018

– Amendments to IAS 28 'Investments in associates and Joint ventures' 
- Long term interests in associates and Joint Ventures. January 1, 2019

– Amendments to IAS 19 'Employee Benefits 
- Plan Amendment, curtailment or settlement. January 1, 2019

– Amendments to IFRS 10 'Consolidated Financial Statements', 
IFRS 12 'Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities' and IAS 28  
'Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures' - Investment 
Entities: Applying the consolidation exception January 1, 2016

– Amendments to IFRS 11 'Joint Arrangements' - Accounting 
for acquisitions of interests in joint operations January 1, 2016

– Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial 
Statements' - Disclosure initiative January 1, 2016

– Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' - Amendments 
as a result of the disclosure initiative January 1, 2017

– Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes' - Recognition of deferred 
tax assets for unrealised losses January 1, 2017

– Amendments to IAS 16 'Property Plant and Equipment' and 
IAS 38 'Intangible Assets' - Clarification of acceptable methods 
of depreciation and amortization January 1, 2016

– Amendments to IAS 16 'Property Plant and Equipment' and 
IAS 41 'Agriculture' - Measurement of bearer plants January 1, 2016

– Amendments to IAS 27 'Separate Financial Statements' 
- Equity method in separate financial statements January 1, 2016

– Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 
“Investment Property” January 1, 2018

– IFRIC 22 “Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration” January 1, 2018
– IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments” January 1, 2019
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Other than the aforesaid standards and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has
also issued the following standards which have not been adopted by the Securities and Exchange Commission of
Pakistan:
–   IFRS 1 – First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
–   IFRS 9 – Financial Instruments
–   IFRS 14 – Regulatory Deferral Accounts
–   IFRS 15 – Revenue from Contracts with Customers
–   IFRS 16 – Leases

3.6 Adoption of news accounting standards and IFRS
The Company applied IFRS 15 and IFRS 9 for the first time. The nature and effect of the changes as a result of
adoption of these new accounting standards are described below. 
Several other amendments and interpretations apply for the first time in 2018, but do not have an impact on the
consolidated financial statements of the Company. The Company has not early adopted any standards,
interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective

3.6.1 IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS 18 Revenue and related interpretations and it applies,
with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from contracts with its customers. IFRS 15 establishes a five-step
model to account for revenue arising from contracts with customers and requires that revenue be recognized at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring
goods or services to a customer. 
IFRS 15 requires entities to exercise judgment, taking into consideration all of the relevant facts and
circumstances when applying each step of the model to contracts with their customers. The standard also
specifies the accounting for the incremental costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to fulfilling
a contract. In addition, the standard requires relevant disclosures. 
The Company adopted IFRS 15 using the full retrospective method of adoption. The effect of the transition on the
current period has not been disclosed as the standard provides an optional practical expedient. The Company did
not apply any of the other available optional practical expedients.

3.6.2 IFRS 9 Financial Instruments 
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments replaces IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement for annual
periods beginning on or after July 1, 2018 bringing together all three aspects of the accounting for financial
instruments: classification and measurement; impairment; and hedge accounting.
With the exception of hedge accounting, which the Company applied prospectively, the Company has applied
IFRS 9, with the initial application date of July1, 2018.
The Company applied IFRS 9. The standard requires, in order to avoid the use of hindsight at a later date that
entities conclude on the following matters as at the date of the initial application:

Electing and/or revoking the fair value through profit or loss option for eligible financial instruments.
Electing to measure non-financial contracts held for own use at fair value through profit or loss.

 The choice of classifying eligible equity instruments as financial assets at fair value through OCI.
Determining whether recognizing own credit in OCI for liabilities at fair value would enlarge an accounting
mismatch.
Concluding on the business model for financial assets.
Concluding whether or not, at the date of initial application of IFRS 9, to continue to follow hedge
accounting under the requirements of IAS 39, when applicable.
If concluding to apply hedge accounting under IFRS 9 (along with its benefits e.g., forward points, option
premiums, currency basis).
Voluntarily de-designate any existing hedge relationship before the date of application as IFRS 9 will not
allow voluntary de-designation any longer.
Continue to apply the choice to use IAS 39 on macro fair value hedging, even when applying IFRS 9 for all
other hedge relationships.
Concluding whether the ECL is calculated based on the general or simplified approach for trade
receivables and contract assets having a significant financing component and for lease receivables, if any.

3.6.3 The management concluded that there have been no affects as a result of adoption of IFRS 15 and IFRS 9,
therefore, no restatement of financial components was deemed necessary in the current period financial
statements.

3.7 Use of estimates and judgments
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in
Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments
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about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates. The estimates underlying the assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods. 
The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or
where judgment was exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

3.6.1 Property, plant and equipment
The Company’s management reviews the rates of depreciation / estimated useful lives used in the calculation of
depreciation charge for its property, plant and equipment and the value of the assets for possible impairment at
each financial year end. Further, the Company estimates revalued amounts and useful lives of leasehold land,
factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds based on the periodic valuations carried out by
independent professional values. Any change in estimate in future might affect the carrying amounts of the
respective items of property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge,
impairment, surplus on revaluation and annual transfer of incremental depreciation from surplus on revaluation of
property, plant and equipment account to unappropriated profit together with any tax effect.

3.6.2 Investments
Investment in Joint Venture is stated at cost, Details of the company's investment are stated in Note 7 to the
financial statements.

3.6.3 Stock-in-trade and stores and spares
The Company at each balance sheet date reviews the net realizable value of stock-in-trade and stores and spares 
to assess any diminution in their respective carrying values. Any change in estimates in future years might affect
the carrying amounts of stock-in-trade and stores and spares with a corresponding effect on the profit and loss
account of those future years.

3.6.4 Trade debts and other receivables
The Company reviews its doubtful trade debts and other receivables at each balance sheet date to assess the
adequacy of provision there against (if any). In particular, judgment is required in the estimation of the amount and 
timing of future cash flows when determining the level of provision required. Such estimates are based on
assumptions about a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the provision.

3.6.5 Employee benefits
The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan - staff gratuity are determined through actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary
increases and mortality rates. Due to the long-term nature of these benefits, such estimates are subject to
uncertainties. Significant assumptions used to carry out the actuarial valuation have been disclosed in note 20 to
these financial statements.
The liability related to compensated absences is determined by the management based on future entitlement of
absences of employees.

3.6.6 Taxation
In making estimate for income tax payable by the Company, the Company takes into account the applicable tax
laws. Deferred tax asset is recognized for all unused tax losses and available credits to the extent that it is
probable that sufficient taxable temporary differences and taxable profits will be available against which such
losses and credits can be utilized. Significant judgment is exercised to determine the amount of deferred tax asset 
to be recognized.

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are the same, as
those applied in the preparation of financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2017 and are
enumerated as follows:

4.1 Property, plant and equipment and Intangibles
4.1.1 Owned assets

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost of such item can be measured
reliably. Recognition of the cost in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment ceases when
the item is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by the
management. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of an asset including
borrowing costs, if any. When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they
are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.
Property, plant and equipment (except leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds)
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Factory building, plant and
machinery and coating sheds are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any, whereas leasehold land is stated at revalued amount less impairment loss, if any. The value
assigned to leasehold land is not amortized as the respective leases are expected to be renewed for further
periods on payment of relevant rentals.
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Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and its
cost can be reliably measured. Cost incurred to replace a component of an item of property, plant and equipment
is capitalized and the asset so replaced is derecognized. Normal repairs and maintenance are charged to the
profit and loss account during the period in which they are incurred.
Depreciation is charged on reducing balance method at rates specified in note 6.1. Depreciation on addition is
charged from the month the asset is available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month of disposal.
Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of each part of property, plant and equipment that is
significant in relation to the total cost of the asset are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.
Surplus on revaluation of leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds is credited to
the surplus on revaluation account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount of assets does not differ materially from the estimated fair value. To the extent of the incremental
depreciation charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
(net of deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit and
loss account in the year the asset is derecognized. When revalued assets are sold or transferred, any related
amount included in the revaluation surplus is transferred to retained earnings.

4.1.2 Capital work-in-progress
These are stated at cost less impairment, if any, and consist of expenditure incurred and advances made in
respect of assets in the course of their acquisition, construction and installation. The assets are transferred to
relevant category of property, plant and equipment when they are available for intended use.

4.1.3 Intangible assets 
Intangible assets are measured on initial recognition at cost. Costs that are directly associated with identifiable
software products / licenses controlled by the Company and that have probable economic benefit beyond one
year are recognized as intangible assets. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Costs associated with maintaining computer software products are recognized as an expense when incurred.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized on a straight line basis over their estimated useful lives as
specified in note 7. In respect of additions and disposals of intangible assets during the year, amortization is
charged from the month of acquisition to the month preceding the disposal.
Gain or loss arising from derecognition of an intangible asset is measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in profit and loss account when the
asset is derecognized.

4.2 Investment
Investment in joint venture is accounted for in accordance with the joint venture agreement as well as provisions
of IAS-31 Accounting for Joint Venture. The company also accounts for its proportionate income/loss on the basis
of latest available audited financial information.

4.3 Stores and spares 
Stores and spares are stated at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value, less provision for
impairment, if any. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred
thereon.
Provision for obsolete and slow moving stores, spares and loose tools is determined based on management's
estimate regarding their future usability.
Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

4.4 Stock-in-trade
These are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined under the weighted average basis.
Cost of work-in-process and finished goods consists of direct materials, labour and applicable production
overheads. Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of the business less
estimated cost of completion and selling expenses. 
Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon up to the balance
sheet date. 
Scrap inventory is valued at estimated realizable value.

4.5 Trade debts and other receivables
Trade debts and other receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized
cost less provision for impairment, if any. A provision for impairment is established when there is an objective
evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. Trade debts and other receivables considered irrecoverable are written off.
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4.6 Staff retirement benefits
Defined benefit plan
The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme covering all its permanent employees who have completed
the minimum qualifying period one year of service as defined under the scheme. The Company's obligation under
the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation carried out at each year end under the Projected Unit Credit
Method. Remeasurements which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income.
The Company determines the interest expense on the defined benefit liability for the period by applying the
discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then
defined benefit liability, taking into account any changes in the defined benefit liability during the period as a result
of benefit payments. Interest expense and current service cost are recognized in profit and loss account. The
most recent valuation of the scheme was carried out as at June 30, 2019. Details of the scheme are given in note
19.1 of these financial statements.

4.7 Compensated absences
The liability for accumulated compensated absences of employees is recognized in the period in which
employees render services that increases their entitlement to future compensated absences.

4.8 Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognized initially at fair value plus directly attributable cost, if any, and
subsequently measured at amortized cost.

4.9 Markup bearing borrowings
Loans and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs, if any. Subsequently, these are measured at amortized cost using the effective markup rate
method.

4.10 Revenue recognition
New Policy
The Company is in the business of manufacture and sale of seamless steel pipes, tubular products and coating on 
steel pipes. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in
its revenue arrangements and do not have any agency relationship.
Sales of Goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of goods with normal credit term of 30 to 90 days upon delivery. The Company
considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., warranties, customer loyalty points). In determining the 
transaction price for the sale of goods, the Company considers the effects of variable consideration, the existence 
of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer (if any).
Previous Policy
Local sales are recognized as revenue when invoiced with the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which coincides with delivery.
Export sales are recognized as revenue when invoiced with the transfer of significant risks and rewards of
ownership, which coincides either with date of shipping bill or upon delivery to customer or its representative,
based on terms of arrangement.
Scrap / wastage sales accounted when invoice accompanied by actual delivery and collection.

4.11 Taxation
Income Tax expenses comprises current and deferred tax. Income Tax expense is recognized in the profit and
loss account, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or
below equity, in which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or below equity respectively.
Current
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date, and any adjustment to tax payable or receivable in respect 
of previous years.
Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account
the available tax credits and tax rebates, if any, or on turnover at the specified rate or Alternate Corporate Tax as
defined in section 113C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, whichever is higher. The charge for the current tax also
includes adjustments where necessary, relating to prior years which arise from assessment framed / finalized (if
any) during the year.
Deferred
Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising
from differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and their tax
base. This is recognized on the basis of the expected manner of the realization or settlement of the carrying
amount of assets and liabilities using the tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.
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Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent
that is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. The Company also recognizes deferred tax
liability on surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment in accordance with the requirements of
International Accounting Standard 12 'Income Taxes'.

4.12 Borrowing costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which these are incurred using the effective
interest rate method except those which are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset (i.e. an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or
sale) are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. 

4.13 Provisions
A provision is recognized in the balance sheet when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past event, it is probable that an outflow of resource embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each balance 
sheet date and adjusted to reflect current best estimate.

4.14 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and bank balances. Short-term 
borrowing / running finances that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company’s cash
management are included as a component of cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement.

4.15 Foreign currency translations
Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for in Pakistan Rupees at the foreign exchange rates
prevailing on the dates of transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into
Pakistan Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing on the balance sheet date. Exchange differences are
included in the profit and loss account.

4.16 Financial instruments
New Policy
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.
Financial assets 
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The classification of financial
assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component or for which the Company has applied the practical expedient, the Company
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables for which the Company has applied the practical expedient or
business model are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15. Refer to the accounting
policies Note. Revenue from contracts with customers.
In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. The
Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories: 

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments).
Financial assets at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and losses (debt instruments).
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and losses
upon derecognition (equity instruments)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
When applicable, Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments) 
In this case, the Company measures financial assets at amortised cost if both of the following conditions
are met: 
The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows; and
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The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding Financial assets at amortised cost
are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) method and are subject to impairment. Gains 
and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or impaired. 

The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following conditions are met:
The financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling; and
The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding 

For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and impairment
losses or reversals are recognised in the statement of profit or loss and computed in the same manner as for
financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are recognised in OCI. Upon
derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is recycled to profit or loss. The Company’s
debt instruments at fair value through OCI includes investments in quoted debt instruments included under other
non-current financial assets. 
Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI (equity instruments) 
Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity instruments 
designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by instrument basis.
Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other
income in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, except when the
Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI are not subject to impairment
assessment. The Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments under this category.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets mandatorily required to be 
measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
selling or repurchasing in the near term. Derivatives, including separated embedded derivatives (if any), are also
classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt instruments to be classified
at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt instruments may be designated at fair
value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting
mismatch. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss. This category includes
derivative instruments and listed equity investments (if any) which the Company had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as other income in
the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.
Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Company of similar financial assets)
is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when: 
The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired ; or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement and
either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has 
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of
the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
passthrough arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred
control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of
the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be
required to repay .
Impairment of financial assets
Aside from this note, other disclosures relating to impairment of financial assets (trade receivables) are included. 
The Companyrecognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss.
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ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate, when applicable. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms. ECLs are recognised in two stages. 
For credit exposures for which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default events that are possible within the next 12-months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
For trade receivables and contract assets, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs.
Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. Whenever considered necessary, the Company has established a provision
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic.
For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, the Company applies the low credit risk simplification. At every
reporting date, the Company evaluates whether the debt instrument is considered to have low credit risk using all
reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort. In making that evaluation,
the Company reassesses the internal credit rating of the debt instrument. In addition, the Company considers that
there has been a significant increase in credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due.
The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are 90 days past due. However,
in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or external
information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full before
taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no 
reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as
appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative financial instruments. 
Subsequent measurement 
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified
as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes 
derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in
hedge relationships as defined by IFRS 9. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments
Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. The Company has not designated any
financial liability as at fair value through profit or loss.
Loans and borrowings 
This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.
This category generally applies to interest-bearing loans and borrowings. 
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the
derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. 
Offsetting of financial instruments 
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Previous Policy
All financial assets and liabilities are recognized at the time when the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provision of instruments. Non-derivative financial assets comprises loans and receivables that are
financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in active markets and includes trade
debts, advances, cash and cash equivalent. Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash
flows from the assets have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on derecognition of the financial assets or liabilities is taken to 
profit and loss account.

4.17 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements only
when there is legally enforceable right to set-off the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle
on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.18 Impairment
Financial assets
A financial asset is assessed at each balance sheet date to determine whether there is any objective evidence
that it is impaired. A financial asset is considered to be impaired if objective evidence indicates that one or more
events have had a negative effect on the estimated future cash flows of that asset.
Non-financial assets
The carrying amounts of non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax asset, are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then
the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the profit and
loss account, for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is
ascertained through discounting of the estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. For the purpose of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units).
An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in estimates used to determine the recoverable
amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognized.

4.19 Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting structure. Management
monitors the operating results of its products (i.e. production of seamless pipes and coating) separately for the
purpose of making decisions regarding resource allocation and performance assessment.

4.20 Dividend and appropriation to reserves
Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which these are
approved by the members and board of directors.

4.21 Earnings per share basic and diluted
The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is
calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit
or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for
the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares.

4.22 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICY
Effective May 30, 2017 the companies act 2017 (the act) was enacted which replace and repealed the previous
companies ordinance 1984 (the repealed ordinance).Section 235 of the repealed ordinance relating to treatment
of surplus arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment has not been carried forward in the act. The said 
section of the repealed Ordinance specified the representation and accounting treatment relating to revaluation of 
property, plant and equipment which was not in accordance with the requirement of IAS 16 'Property, plant and
Equipment' as applicable in Pakistan. Consequently in the year 2018  the company changed its accounting policy
for the revaluation of property, plant and equipment in accordance with the requirements of the accounting and
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 2017. Previously up to the year
2017,Company's accounting policy for revaluation of property, plant and equipment was in accordance with the
provision of Section 235 of the repealed Ordinance. Further, the revaluation surplus on property, plant and
Equipment was shown as a separate item below Equity, in accordance with the presentation requirement of the
repealed Ordinance. The accounting policy and presentation requirement relating to revaluation of “Property,
Plant and Equipment” as explained in note 6.1 to these financial statements. Further, the revaluation surplus on
property, plant and equipment henceforth now presented in the statement of financial position and statement of
changes in equity as capital reserve i.e part of equity. 
In accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 'Accounting policies, estimates and errors', the above explained
changes in accounting policy has been accounted for retrospectively in the previous year.
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D E P R E C I A T I O NC O S T / R E V A L U A T I O N

D E P R E C I A T I O NC O S T / R E V A L U A T I O N

30 June  30 June  
Note 2019     2018    

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT                                               ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
Operating fixed assets 5.1 5,028,007 5,201,352
Capital work-in-progress 5.5 52,275 —     

5,080,282 5,201,352

5.1 Operating fixed assets                                           30 June 2 0 19
Book R

Particulars
As at 

1 - July
 2018

Additions/
Transfer

Disposal Surplus on
Revaluation

As at 
30 June 

2019

As at 
1 - July
 2018

Charge for
the period

Disposal
As at 

30 June 
2019

Value
as at 

30 June 
2019

A
T
E
%

                                               ......................................................................... (Rupees in '000) .................................................................................
Owned Assets
Land - lease hold 850,709 — — — 850,709 — — — — 850,709 0
Building - factory 1,929,356 6 — — 1,929,362 306,668 40,567 — 347,235 1,582,127 2.5
Building - head office 3,792 — — — 3,792 2,971 82 — 3,053 739 10
Plant and machinery 3,796,105 — — — 3,796,105 1,158,123 131,899 — 1,290,022 2,506,083 5
Furniture and fixtures 3,239 — — — 3,239 2,225 101 — 2,326 913 10
Office equipment 5,400 — — — 5,400 3,753 165 — 3,918 1,482 10
Electric and gas 
  appliances 23,803 3,950 — — 27,753 13,203 1,455 — 14,658 13,095 10
Air conditioners 1,813 — — — 1,813 1,221 59 — 1,280 533 10
Drawings and 
   survey equipment 363 — — — 363 352 1 — 353 10 10
Motor vehicles 36,151 68 — — 36,219 33,578 529 — 34,107 2,112 20
Computer and 
   allied equipment 9,519 — — — 9,519 8,051 294 — 8,345 1,174 20
Security weapons 1,178 — — — 1,178 753 43 — 796 382 10
Coating Sheds 83,132 — — — 83,132 14,615 1,713 — 16,328 66,804 2.5
Assets under Diminishing 
Musharika Financing
Motor vehicles 5,005 — — — 5,005 2,700 461 — 3,161 1,844 20

    6,749,565 4,024 — — 6,753,589 1,548,213 177,369 — 1,725,582 5,028,007 

                                                                        2 0 1 8
Book R

Particulars
As at 

1 - July
 2017

Additions/
Transfer

Adjustment Surplus on
Revaluation

As at 
30 June 

2018

As at 
1 - July
 2017

Charge for
the year

On Surplus
Written Back

As at 
30 June 

2018

Value
as at 

30 June 
2018

A
T
E
%

                                               ......................................................................... (Rupees in '000) .................................................................................
Owned Assets
Land - lease hold 858,040 —   —   (7,331) 850,709 —   —   —   —   850,709 0
Building - factory 1,978,632 73,748 —   (123,023) 1,929,356 283,567 42,260 (19,159) 306,668 1,622,688 2.5
Building - head office 3,233 559 —   —    3,792 2,942 29 —   2,971 821 10
Plant and machinery 3,762,891 33,215 —   —    3,796,105 1,021,051 137,072 —   1,158,123 2,637,983 5
Furniture and fixtures 3,239 —   —   —    3,239 2,112 113 —   2,225 1,014 10
Office equipment 5,400 —   —   —    5,400 3,537 216 —   3,753 1,645 10
Electric and gas 
    appliances 23,803 —   —   —    23,803 12,197 1,006 —   13,203 10,598 10
Air conditioners 1,813 —   —   —    1,813 1,155 66 —   1,221 592 10
Drawings and 
 survey equipment 363 —   —   —    363 351 1 —   352 10 10
Motor vehicles 36,151 —   —   —    36,151 32,935 643 —   33,578 2,573 20
Computer and allied 

equipment 9,376 143 —   —    9,519 7,755 296 —   8,051 1,467 20
Security weapons 1,178 —   —   —    1,178 706 47 —   753 424 10
Coating Sheds 88,949 —   —   (5,811) 83,138 13,509 2,011 (905) 14,615 68,523 2.5
Assets under Diminishing 

Musharika Financing
Motor vehicles 5,005 —   —   —    5,005 2,123 576 —   2,700 2,305 20

   6,778,073 107,665 —   (136,165) 6,749,571 1,383,940 184,336 (20,064) 1,548,213 5,201,352
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                       ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
5.2 Allocation of depreciation

Cost of sales 175,574 182,930
Administrative expenses 1,795 1,407

177,369 184,337

5.3 Revaluation of Property, Plant and equipment
The Company carries its leasehold land, factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds at
revalued amounts under IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment'. The latest valuation was carried out on
September 30, 2015 by M/s. K.G. Traders (Private) Limited, an independent professional valuer, on the
basis of present market values which resulted in a surplus on revaluation amounting to Rs. 66.272 million.
The forced sale value of land and building as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 2,897.495 million.
The forced sale value of plant and machinery as per the aforesaid revaluation report was Rs. 3,725.112
million.
Levels of fair value are defined as follows:
Level 1 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
Level 3 - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs).

Details of fair value hierarchy and information relating to fair value of Company's leasehold land, building,
electric installations and plant and machinery is as follows:

5.4                                             Note Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
.................................... Rupees in '000 .................................... 

Land - leasehold                5.4.1 —   850,709 — 850,709
Building - factory —   1,582,127 — 1,582,127
Plant and machinery —   2,506,083 — 2,506,083
Coating sheds - owned —   66,804 — 66,804
Vehicles —   3,956 — 3,956
Others —   18,328 — 18,328
As at June 30, 2019            — 5,028,007 — 5,028,007
Land - leasehold              5.4.2 —   850,709 —   850,709 
Building - factory —   1,622,688 —   1,622,688 
Plant and machinery —   2,637,983 —   2,637,983 
Coating sheds - owned —   68,523 —   68,523 
Vehicles —   4,878 —   4,878 
Others —   16,576 —   16,576
As at June 30, 2018         —   5,201,357 — 5,201,357

5.5 Had there been no revaluation, the written down value of revalued Assets in the blance sheet would have
been as follows:

Note 2019      2018    
                                                                                                                          ............ (Rupees in '000) .............

Land - leasehold 14,869 14,896

Building - factory 469,977 463,460

Plant and machinery 512,480 539,453

Coating sheds 61,936 63,530

The Leasehold land comprising 396.77acres of land situated at Nooriabad District Jamshoro, Sindh
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5.5 Capital work-in-progress

Cost
As at 01 July

2018
Additions (Written off) /

(Transfers)
As at 30 June 

2019

.................................... (Rupees in '000) ....................................... 
Building - Head Office 
  and Factory —   —   —   —   
Plant and Machinery (Spiral welded plant) —   52,275 —   52,275

         —   52,275 — 52,275

Cost
As at 01 July

2017
Additions (Written off) /

(Transfers)
As at 30 June 

2018

Building - Head Office 
   and Factory 64,226 8,717 (72,943) —   
Plant and Machinery 8,876 24,338 (33,214) —   

       73,102 33,055 (106,157) —

30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

6. LONG TERM DEPOSITS                                                                      ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
Long term deposits 6,936 6,936
Less: Current maturity of long term deposits —   —   

6,936 6,936

Management believe there was no impairment in long term deposit balances

7. INVESTMENT Note
HPY Coating (Pvt.) Ltd. 7.1 243,187 —
Addition during the year 166 243,187 
Less:  Provision : Loss of joint venture (1,232) —

Closing Balance 242,121 243,187

7.1 HPY Coating (Private) Limited (“HPY”) is a joint venture company incorporated in Pakistan on 17th April
2017, in collaboration with Jiangsu PuYuan Steel Pipe Industry Company Limited (“PuYuan”) on the basis
of a 55%:45% shareholding with Huffaz owning 55% (23,100,000 shares @ 10 each) of the issued share
capital in HPY against transfer of Land & Building therein and PuYuan owning 45% (18,900,000 shares @
10 each) shares against transfer of plant machinery and equipment for setting up the project. The name of
the Chief Executive of the company is Mr Hafiz Abdul Majid. The Board of directors of Joint Venture
company will comprise 5(Five) directors, with Huffaz appointing / nominating 3 (Three) Directors and
PuYuan appointing / nominating 2(Two) Directors on the Board. The Purpose of investment is setting up a
project for providing pipe coating services to its prospective customers (“Project”). This project is going to be 
a value addition service for the products of Huffaz.

7.2 The joint venture has not yet commenced its operating activites.The latest available audited financial
statements of the company was prepared for the year 2018.The provision for loss represents 55% of the
loss as per the audited financial statement for the year 2018.

7.3 The above investment would be categorised under level-2 in financial hierarchy classification.
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
8. STORES AND SPARES

Stores - in hand 71,703 69,130
Spare parts and loose tools 1,880 3,854

73,583 72,984
Less: Provision for impairment/obsolescence (2,000) —

71,583 72,984

8.1 There have been no capital item in stores spears and tools.
9. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Raw material - in hand 68,234 131,299
Work-in-process 61,620 38,023
Finished goods 1,054,302 835,718
Rejection / scrap material 172,092 206,188

1,356,248 1,211,228
Add: Stock in transit 114,392 —

1,470,640 1,211,228

10. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured
Considered good 71,201 103,498
Considered doubtful —    —    

71,201 103,498
Less: Provision for doubtful debts —    —    

71,201 103,498

10.1 Trade debts are non-interest bearing and are generally on 30 - 60 or 90 days credit period.
10.2 Related Parties from whom debts are due are as under:

Hafiz Abdul Waheed and Brothers (Pvt) Limited —    18,578
Huffaz Corporation (Pvt) Limited 2,832 —

2,832 18,578

10.3 The aging of trade debt balances at the balance sheet date was as follows:
                                                                                       2019 2018                    

Gross Impairment Gross Impairment 
                                                                  .................................. (Rupees in '000) ........................................

Less than 90 days 63,343 —     90,230 —   
91 to 180 days old 7,858  —    13,268 —  
181 to 365 days old —  —    —  —  
More than one year —  —   —  —  

71,201 — 103,498 —

Based on the past experience, consideration of financial position of customers, past track records and
recoveries, the Company believes that there may not be 'Expected Credit Losses'. Therefore, trade debts
do not require any impairment and no provision was made.
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
11. LOANS AND ADVANCES - considered good

Advances to suppliers - unsecured 11.1 12,434 12,073
Advances to employees for expenses 5,406 5,608
Loans and advances to employees 11.2 11,110 7,960

28,950 25,641

11.1 This includes advances to suppliers for purchases. The amounts paid have been adjusted subsequently
upon supply of goods to the company.

11.2 This includes interest free medical loan provided to employees. The advances have been settled with
emloyees by way of deduction from their salaries.

12. TRADE DEPOSITS

Trade deposits - considered good 12.1 38,661 16,855
Short term loan to HPY Coating 12.2 20,828 20,678

59,489 37,533

12.1 This represents deposits held by customers of the company in accordance with the supply agreement
entertered for supply of companies product. The company believe that there would be no expected credit
losses in respect of deposits held by customers.

12.2 This represents advance given to HPY coating (Private) Limited for the purpose of meeting working capital
requirements and included various payments for meeting costs incurred by the investee company as
provided in the joint venture agreement.(Note: 7)

13. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sales tax Refundable —    49,837 
Letter of credit —    3,308 
Margin against guarantee 33,479 12,509

33,479 65,654

14. ADVANCE TAX - NET OF PROVISION
Tax receivable as at 1 July 34,992 36,378
Tax payments / adjustments during the period 21,419 50,940

56,411 87,318
Provision for taxation (59,373) (52,326)

(2,962) 34,992

15. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Cash in hand 60 96
With banks in current accounts 15,450 40,834
With bank in foreign currency accounts 21 21

15,531 40,951
Less: Book Over draft (5,103) -

10,428 40,951
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16. SHARE CAPITAL
30 June 30-Jun 30 June 30-Jun

2019 2018 2019 2018
(Number of shares)                                                                 .............(Rupees in '000)..............

Authorised

70,000,000    70,000,000 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each      700,000      700,000 

      Issued, subscribed and paid up

12,200,278 12,200,278 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10 each
fully paid in cash 122,003 122,003

38,906,565 38,906,565 Ordinary Shares of Rs. 10  each
issued as bonus shares 389,066 389,066

4,377,460 4,377,460 Issued right shares fully paid in cash 43,775 43,775

  55,484,303  55,484,303 554,844     554,844

16.1 The above includes shares having face value of Rs. 101.213 million (2018: Rs. 101.213 million) held by the
foreign sponsors of the Company.

30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
17. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT

AND EQUIPMENT - NET OF TAX
As at July 1,
Leasehold land 797,175 804,378
Factory building, plant and machinery and coating sheds 3,286,261 3,486,138
Transfer of assets —    (50,514) 

4,083,436 4,240,002
Less: transferred to unappropriated profit:
– Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and 

equipment realised during the year on account of 
incremental depreciation charged thereon - net of tax (94,833) (98,988)

– Related deferred tax (38,735) (57,578)
(133,568) (156,566)
3,949,868 4,083,436

Less: related deferred tax liability on:
– Revaluation as at July1, (991,254) (1,048,832)
– Increamental depreciation charged during the year 38,735 57,578

on related assets transferred to profit and loss account 
– Effect of change in tax rates —    —  

(952,519) (991,254)
2,997,349 3,092,182
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
18. LONG TERM FINANCING

Secured
Musharka facility 619 3,128
Less: Current Portion shown under current liability (619) (1,142)

— 1,986

18.1 This represent long term financing (under diminishing musharaka arrangement) of Rs.4.5 million obtained
to finance the purchase of a vehicle. Principal amount is repayable in twenty quarterly installments starting
from September 2014. 

Markup is payable quarterly at 1year KIBOR plus 6.4% to be determined annually. The financing is secured
against charge over the same assets. 'The monthly rentals are payable latest by 1 September 2019 

30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
19. DEFERRED LIABILITIES

Staff gratuity 19.1.3 134,098 114,657
Less: Benefits due but not yet paid 20 (4,418) (7,197)

129,680 107,460
Deferred taxation - net 19.2 1,045,622 1,074,291

1,175,302 1,181,752

19.1. Staff gratuity - defined benefit plans

19.1.1 General description of the defined benefit plan and accounting policy for the remeasurements of the defined 
benefit obligations is disclosed in note 4.6 to these financial statements

19.1.2 Liability recognised in the statement of financial position
Present value of defined benefit obligations 19.1.3 129,679 107,460
Benefits due but not paid during the year 4,418 7,197

134,098 114,657

19.1.3 Changes in present value of defined benefit obligations
Balance at the beginning of the year 107,460 94,495
Expense recognized in profit & loss account 19.1.4 16,999 13,727
Total remeasurements recognised in other 
   comprehensive income 19.1.5 5,660 1,682
Benefits paid during the year (440) (1,104)
Benefits due but not paid during the year — (1,339)
Obligation as at 30 June 2019 129,679 107,460

19.1.4 Amount recognized in profit and loss account
Current service cost 7,348 6,498
Interest cost 9,652 7,229

16,999 13,727
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
19.1.5 Total remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income

Remeasurement on defined benefit obligation arising on
– financial assumptions —   —   
– demographic assumptions 332 69
– experience adjustments 5,328 1,613

5,660 1,682

19.1.6 Acturial valuation of staff gratuity scheme has been carried out as at Jun 30, 2019 using Projected Unit
Credit Method and the following significant assumptions have been used

2019  2018  

Discount rate 9.00% 9.00%
Salary increase rate 14.25% 8.00%
Mortality rate SLIC 2001-2005 SLIC 2001-2005

With one-year With one-year 
set back set back 

Retirement age 60 years 60 years

19.1.7 Number of permanent employees covered by the scheme 148 155

19.1.8 Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

Increase / (decrease) in defined
benefit obligation due to 

Change in  
assumption 

Increase in
assumption

Decrease in
assumption

........ (Rupees in '000) ......... 
Discount rate 1% (5,502) 6,315
Salary growth rate 1% 6,315 (5,598)

19.1.9 The gratuity scheme exposes the Company to the following risks:

Longevity risks: The risk arises when the actual lifetime of retirees is longer than expectation. This risk is
measured at the plan level over the entire retiree population.

Salary increase risk: The most common type of retirement benefit is one where the benefit is linked with
final salary. The risk arises when the actual increases are higher than expectation and impacts the liability 
accordingly.

Withdrawal risk: The risk of actual withdrawals varying with the actuarial assumptions can impose a risk to 
the benefit obligation. The movement of the liability can go either way.

19.1.10 The weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation as at June 30, 2019/2018 is 5 years.

19.1.11 The expected gratuity expense for the next one year from July 1, 2019 would be 23,736 thousand (July 1,
2018 to Rs. 14,956 thousand).

 This is the amount by which the defined benefit liability is expected to increase.
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
19.2 Deferred taxation - net

Taxable temporary difference arising in respect of:
Accelerated tax depreciation and amortisation 255,034 239,589
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 902,080 975,185
Finance lease arrangement / DM financing 355 —

1,157,469 1,214,774
Deductible temporary differences arising in repsect of:
Defined benefit plan's obligation (40,530) (33,251)
Provision for compensated absences (4,093) (4,093)
Others (67,226) (103,139)

(111,849) (140,483)
1,045,620 1,074,291

20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors 23,519 22,354
Accrued liabilities 42,829 32,291
Sales tax payable 17,718 —
Tax deducted at source 33,797 31,671
Workers' profit participation fund 20.1 358,284 317,431
Workers' welfare fund 14,001 13,673
Bills payable 131,009 93,401
Advances from customers 117,523 164,036
Provision for compensated absences 14,113 14,113
Gratuity due but not yet paid 19.1.2 4,418 7,197
Others 1,396 1,402

758,607 697,569

20.1 Workers' Profit Participation Fund
Balance as at 1 July 317,431 290,469
Allocation for the period 1,967 946
Interest on funds utilized in the Company's business 38,885 26,016

358,284 317,431
Payments made during the year —     —    
Balance at the end of the year 358,284 317,431

21. SHORT TERM SPONSORS' ADVANCES - Unsecured
This represents unsecured and interest free advance 

from sponsors repayable on demand. 83,180 65,636
83,180 65,636

22. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS
Restructured term finance under mark-up arrangements —   35,029 

— 35,029

The company obtained the restructured short term loan facility from bank Alafalah of Rs.200 million in the
previous year . The loan is repayable by dated March 2017 to December 2017. The mark up on the facility is
charged at the rate i.e KIBOR + 3%. The loan is secured by way of first pari passu charged on Fixed Assets
of the company, having value of Rs.550 million. The amount of outstanding balance has been paid fully in
the current year along with markup thereon.
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
23. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term musharka financing 18 619 1,142

619 1,142

24. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

24.1 Contingencies

24.1.1 Guarantees as at June 30, 2019 amounting to Rs. 23.569 million agree from listing (2018: Rs. 21.389
million) have been furnished in favour of various customers. 

24.1.2 Under the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess Act, 2011, Government of Pakistan levied Gas
Infrastructure Development (GID) Cess on gas bills at the rate of Rs. 13 per MMBTU on all industrial
consumers. In the month of June 2012, the Federal Government revised GID Cess rate from Rs. 13 per
MMBTU to Rs. 100 per MMBTU. Various companies filed suits before the Honourable High Court of
Sindh, challenging the applicability of Gas Infrastructure Cess Act, 2011. The Sindh High Court has
restrained the Federation and gas companies from recovering GID Cess over and above Rs. 13 per
MMBTU. On August 22, 2014, the Supreme Court of Pakistan has given a judgment declaring that the
levy of GID cess as a tax was not validly levied in accordance with the Constitution. In September 2014,
the Federal Government promulgated Gas Infrastructure Cess (GIDC) Ordinance No. VI of 2014. In May
2015, the said Ordinance was approved in the parliament and became an Act. Under the Act, GID Cess at 
the rate of Rs. 100 per MMBTU on all industrial consumers has been levied. Subsequent to the approval
of the Act, the Company received gas bills at the rate of Rs. 100 per MMBTU, as the Company is
considered an industrial consumers. The Company, while considering itself as industrial consumer, has
accrued (but not paid) GID Cess amounting to Rs. 1.923 million at the rate of Rs. 100 per MMBTU from
June 2015. 

24.2 Commitments

24.2.1 Commitments under letters of credit as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs. 111 million (2017: Rs. Nil
million).

24.2.2 The facility for opening letters of credit and guarantees as at June 30, 2019 amounted to Rs. 600 million
(2018: Rs. 500 million) of which the amount remaining unutilised as at that date was Rs. Nil.00 million.

30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                          ........... (Rupees in '000) ............
25. Revenue from contract with customers

Gross Revenue - Local 585,698 969,189
Gross Revenue - Export —    27,795 

585,698 996,984
Less -Sales Tax (84,595) (142,180)

501,103 854,804
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                          ........... (Rupees in '000) ............
25.1 Prdocutwise revenue analysis given below 

Seamless and other pipes 414,197 758,195
Coating revenue 86,906 96,609

501,103 854,804

25.2 Geographical allocation of revenue
Sindh 440,971 709,487
Other provinces 60,132 145,317

501,103 854,804

26. COST OF REVENUE FROM CONTRACT WITH CUSTOMERS
Opening stock of finished goods 835,718 652,336
Cost of goods manufactured 26.1 587,124 910,936

1,422,842 1,563,272
Closing stock of finished goods 9 (1,054,302) (835,718)

368,540 727,554

26.1 Cost of goods manufactured
Opening work in progress 38,023 161,085
Raw material consumed 26.1.1 148,893 405,448
Store and spare parts consumed 23,368 36,324
Coating material consumed 44,000 63,742
Gas consumed 31,408 50,379
Processing expense (outside factory) 4,512 —
Power, fuel and water 31,709 40,434
Salaries, wages, and other benefits 26.1.2 100,255 118,290
Rent, rates and taxes 650 40
Insurance 436 866
Repairs and maintenance 5,650 3,275
Carriage and cartage 424 3,156
Depreciation 5.2 175,574 182,930
Others 9,746 5,391
Closing work in progress (61,620) (38,023)

553,028 1,033,337 
Rejection / scrap material
Opening 206,188 83,787
Closing (172,092) (206,188)

34,096 (122,401)
587,124 910,936

26.1.1Raw material consumed
Opening stock 131,299 375,568
Purchases 200,220 161,179

331,519 536,747
Closing stock (182,626) (131,299)

148,893 405,448

26.1.2Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs.10.83 million (2018: Rs.8.723 ) in respect of staff retirement
benefits.
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                          ........... (Rupees in '000) ............
27. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries, wages and other benefits 27.1 5,117 5,606
Sales promotion and other expenses 8 17
Travelling and conveyance 9 76
Late delivery charges 4,582 —
Carriage outawrd —   5,277 
Miscellaneous 4,213 2,093

13,929 13,069

27.1 Salaries, wages and other benefits include Rs. 0.56 million (2018: Rs.0.390 ) in respect of staff retirement
benefits.

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, wages and other benefits 28.1 27,206 35,360
Travelling and conveyance 16,319 11,304
Legal and professional charges 2,656 3,665
Fees and subscription 4,523 6,217
Telephone, telex and postage 1,969 1,374
Vehicle running and maintenance 3,718 3,029
Auditors' remuneration 28.2 1,094 1,044
Printing and stationary 432 1,715
Depreciation 5.2 813 1,407
Amortisation —  208 
Utilities 883 999
Rent, rates and taxes 50 705
Repairs and maintenance 2,891 5,393
Advertisement 135 23
Entertainment 35 212
Loss of joint venture company (note 7) 1,232 —
Others 7,924 11,355

71,880 84,010

28.1 Salaries and other benefits includes Rs. 5.598 million (2018: Rs. 4.613 million) in respect of staff retirement
benefits.

28.2 Auditors' remuneration
Annual audit fee 694 660
Half yearly review 240 240
Other services including certifications 70 64
Out of pocket expenses 90 80

1,094 1,044

29. OTHER OPERATING CHARGES
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 1,967 946
Workers' Welfare Fund 4,472 3,560
Exchange loss — 61

6,439 4,567
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                          ........... (Rupees in '000) ............
30. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Scrap sales 18,277 12,350
Others 22,893 18,467

41,170 30,817

31. FINANCE COST
Muharka rent —    2,409 
Interest on workers' profit participation fund 20.1 38,885 26,016
Mark-up on Short term borrowings 7,397 9,838
Profit on Diminishing Musharika financing 122 11
Bank charges 2,173 3,448

48,577 41,722

32. TAXATION
Current

for the year 59,373 52,326
for prior years —   —     

59,373 52,326
Deferred (28,670) (105,501)

30,703 (53,175)

32.1 Income tax assessment has been made in the year 2018 under section 122(9) of the income tax ordinance,
2001, For the tax year 2017 there has been no significant additional tax amount demanded by inccome tax
department. The company is filling a rectification application for the tax credit short allowed in the said
assessment formed by the department.

32.2 Income tax assessment prior to tax year 2017 has been assessed under deemed provision of the income
tax ordinance.

32.3 Finance Act , 2017 has introduced tax rates of 30%, 29% and 28% for the next years 2018, 2019 and 2020
(and onwards), respectively . Accodingly, deferred tax liability has been recorded on the basis of tax rates
that are expected to apply to the taxable profit of the periods in which the temporary differences are
expected to reverse.

32.4 The management believes amount provided for income tax liability for current and previous year has been
in accordance with the prevalent income tax law and sufficient enough to meet the tax liability of the
company. An analysis of tax provision and tax assessment for past 4 years is as under:

                                                                         ........................ (Rupees in '000) ..............................
Tax Year Tax Assessment Provision for Taxation

2,017 63,965 64,320 

2,016 59,000 59,000 

2,015 35,498 35,498 

2,014 37,436 37,436 
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30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                          ........... (Rupees in '000) ............
32.1 Relationship between tax expenses and accounting profit

Profit before taxation 32,908 14,699

Tax at the applicable rate of 29% (2018: 30%) 9,872 4,410
Tax effect of temporary / permanent difference (64,103) (19,443)
Effect of change in tax rate (287) (1,055)
Others 85,221 (37,087)

30,703 (53,175) 

33. EARNING PER SHARE - basic and diluted
Profit after taxation for the year 2,304 67,874

.............. Number in '000 .............

Weighted average number of Ordinary Shares 55,484 55,484

                                                                                                        .................. (Rupees) ...................

Earning per share - basic and diluted 0.04 1.22

There was no diluted earning per share

33.1 Earning before interest,tax,depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)
Operating profit 81,484.65 56,421.00
Depreciation 177,369.00 184,337.00
Amortisation —      208.00 
Finance Cost 48,577.00 41,722.00

307,430.65 282,688.00

34. Changes in working capital 
Decrease / (increase) in current assets 
Stores and spare parts 1,401 5,845
Stock in trade (259,412) 61,548
Trade debts 32,297 17,320
Loans and advances, trade deposits, prepayments 

and other receivables 6,910 33,384
(218,804) 118,097

Increase in current liability
Trade and other payables 58,442 (176,733)

(160,362) (58,636) 
35. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Restructured Term Finances under mark-up arrangements —      (35,029.00) 
Cash and bank balances 10,428 40,951.00

10,428 5,922.00
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36. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES
                                                        Chief Executive                    Directors                      Executives  

Particulars 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
                                                ..............................................Rupees in '000...............................................

Managerial remuneration 6,274 6,274 1,935 1,935 15,347 15,347 

House rent 2,823 2,823 871 871 6,906 6,906 

Utilities —   —   194 194 1,535 1,535 

Gratuity 758 758 250 250 1,803 1,803 

      9,855 9,855 3,250 3,250 25,591 25,591 

Number of persons              1 1 1 1 13 13

36.1 In addition to the above Chief Executive, Director, Executive and certain other employees are provided with
free use of Company maintained vehicles in accordance with the Company's policy.

36.2 During the year no amount (2018: Rs. Nil) was paid to Directors for attending the Board of Directors'
meeting.

37. CAPACITY AND PRODUCTION
                                                                                    2019 2018

Particulars Capacity Production  Capacity Production 
                                                              .........................................Metric Ton.............................................

Seamless Tubular Products 100,000 2,744 100,000 5,303 

Machinery & Machinery Components 3,500 —   3,500 —   

Coating of Seamless Tubular Products 50,000 4,076 50,000 3,092 

6,820      8,395 

The above represents name plate capacities. The production capacity of the plant varies as this depends on 
the relative proportions of the various types of seamless pipes and tubes produces.

Capacity under utilized in the year was due to the lack of the shortage of demand.

Seamless Tubular Products 100% 3% 100% 5%

Coating of Seamless Tubular Products 100% 8% 100% 6%

38. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The permanent number of employees as at `year end were 148 (2018: 155) and total average number of
employees were 140 (2018: 166) the average number of factory employees in the year were 140 (2018:
150)
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39. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

Related parties comprise of subsidiary and associated companies, directors of the Company, companies in
which directors also hold directorship, related group companies, key management personnel and staff
retirement benefit funds.

Transactions with related parties are as follows:

Name Nature of Nature of transaction 30 June  30 June 
relationship  2019     2018    

                                                                                                                                     ............ (Rupees in '000) ............
Hafiz Abdul Waheed Associated Sale of goods

and Brothers company           —           96,199 

Receipts in respect of
sale of goods        23,437      98,713 

Huffaz Corporation Associated Sale of goods
company           —           54,103 

Receipts in respect of
sale of goods         3,052      68,733 

HPY Coating 
(Private) Limited Joint Venture Investment       242,121     243,187 
Transactions with Sponsors' advances
directors Related party received       28,752      21,034 

Sponsors' advances paid       11,181      19,354 
Key management 
personned Remuneration       17,815       17,815 

Balance as at 30 June in relation to transactions related to ralated parties are as follows:

Name Nature of Nature of transaction 30 June  30 June 
relationship  2019     2018    

                                                                                                                                     ............ (Rupees in '000) ............
Hafiz Abdul Waheed Associated Balance as at the date of
and Brothers company balance sheet       (4,859)      18,578 
Huffaz Corporation Associated Balance as at the date of

company balance sheet         2,832     (12,862) 
HPY Coating Balance as at the date of
(Private) Limited Joint Venture balance sheet        20,828      20,678 
Transactions with Balance as at the date of
directors Related party balance sheet      (83,180)    (65,636) 

40. OPERATING SEGMENTS

From the mid of the last year a new cash generating unit has been added. Thus the Compnay has identified
Seamless and Coating as two reportable segments. Performance is measured based on respective
segment results. Information regarding the Company's reportable segment is presented below: 

40.1 Segment revenue and results

Seamless Coating Total
Segment Segment

For the period ended 30 June 2019  .................................. Rs ‘000 ..............................
Revenue from contract with customers 414,197 86,906 501,103
Cost of revenue from contract with customers (283,364) (85,176) (368,540) 
Gross Profit      130,833 1,730 132,563

67Committed to Excellence 



Seamless Coating Total
Segment Segment

For the year ended 30 June 2018                                  .................................. Rs ‘000 ..............................
Revenue from contract with customers 758,195 96,609 854,804 
Cost of revenue from contract with customers (641,703) (85,851) (727,554) 

Gross Profit / (Loss)        116,492 10,758 127,250

30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
Reconciliation of segment results with profit after tax is as follows:
Total results for reportable segments 132,563 127,250
Selling, distribution and administrative expenses (85,809) (97,079)
Other operating expenses (6,439) (4,567)
Other operating income 41,170 30,817
Financial charges (48,577) (41,722)
Taxation (30,703) 53,175
(Loss) / Profit for the year 2,205 67,874

40.2 Segment assets and liabilities
Seamless Coating Total
Segment Segment

                                                                                       .................................. Rs ‘000 ..............................
As at 30-Jun-2019
Segment assets      5,723,788 1,327,566 7,051,354
Segment liabilities       845,320         —    845,320
As at 30-Jun-2018
Segment assets    5,701,335    1,261,070   6,962,405

Segment liabilities       805,952          —          805,952

Reconciliation of segment assets and segment liabilities with total assets and liabilities in the statement of
financial position is as follows:

30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............

Total for reportable segment assets 6,505,583 6,962,405
Unallocated assets 566,564 81,551

Total assets as per statement of financial postion 7,072,147 7,043,956

Total for reportable segment liabilities 845,320 805,952
Unallocated liabilities 1,172,388 1,181,752

Total liabilities as per statement of financial position 2,017,708 1,987,704

40.3 Segment revenue reported above are revenue generated from external customers. There were no inter-
segment sales during the year (June 2019 nil)

40.4 Segment assets reported above comprising of property, plant and equipment and stock in trade.

40.5 100% (2018: 97.21%) gross sales of the Company relates to customers in Pakistan.
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40.6 All non-current assets of the Company as at 30 June 2019 are located in Pakistan.

40.7 Revenue from a major customer of seamless segment represents an aggregate amount of Rs. 383.79
million (2018: Rs. 99.97 million) of total seamless segment revenue of Rs. 414. 197 million (2018: 758.195
million). Further, revenue from a major customer of coating segment represents an aggregate amount of
Rs. 99.034 million (2018: Rs. 97.10 million) out of total coating segment revenue of Rs. 86.906 million
(2018: Rs. 96.609 million).

41. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES

IFRS 9 adopted for the first time in the year. The balances reported in the previous financial statements
under IAS 39 Financial Instruments have also been adopted for the purpose of disclosure in the current
period. All financial insturments have been recognized at fair value through profit and loss account and
there have been no changes in fair values of assets and liabilities in the current period because of the
adoption of new IFRS. Therefore, there were no reclassification made in the current year.

Financial risk management

The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company's risk management framework. The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of
financial instruments:

–  Credit risk
–  Liquidity risk
–  Market risk

Risk Management Framework

The Board meets frequently throughout the year for developing and monitoring the Company's risk
management policies. The Company's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the 
risks faced by the company, to set appropriate policies and systems and reviewed regularly to reflect
changes in market condition and the company's activities. The Company, through its standards and
procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

The Audit Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company's risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks by the Company.

41.1 Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the
other party to incur a financial loss, without taking into account the fair value of any collateral. Concentration
of credit risk arises when a number of financial instruments or contracts are entered into with the same
party, or when counter parties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same
geographic region, or have similar economic features that would cause their ability to meet contractual
obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economics, political or other conditions. Concentrations of
credit risk indicate the relative sensitivity of the Company's performance to developments affecting a
particular industry.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. To reduce the exposure
to credit risk the Company has developed a policy of obtaining advance payments from its customers and
except for customers relating to the Government and certain small and medium sized enterprises, the
management strictly adheres to this policy. For any balances receivable from such small and medium sized
enterprises, the management continuously monitors the credit exposure towards them and makes
provisions against those balances considered doubtful of recovery. Cash is held only with banks with high
quality credit worthiness. As at June 30, 2019, none of the financial assets are past due or impaired and
management made assessment that there will not be 'Expected Credit Losses', Therefore, 'Credit Loss
Model' as per IFRS 9 does not apply to the company.
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The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is as follows:
2019     2018

Balance Maximum    Balance Maximum
sheet  exposure sheet  exposure  

                                                                        ...................................... (Rupees in '000) .................................... 
Trade debts 71,201 71,201 103,498
Loans, advances, deposits and
accrued mark-up and other receivables 121,918 104,078 118,083 118,083
Cash and bank balances 10,428 10,368 40,951 40,855

203,547 188,561 262,532 262,436

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade debts at the statement of financial position date by type of
customer is as follows:

30 June  30 June  
2019     2018    

                                                                                                        ............ (Rupees in '000) .............
Dealers and distributors 30,421 62,949
End-user customers 40,780 40,549

71,201 103,498

As at the year end the Company's most significant customers included a distributor from whom Rs. 10.450
million was due (2018: Rs. 18.58 million) and an end-user from whom Rs. 38.378 million was due (2018: Rs. 
33.401 million).

The Company deposits its funds with banks carrying good credit standings assessed by reputable credit
agencies. These banks are credit rated as follows:

Short term Long term
Local Banks C to A1+ B to AAA

Credit Rated 1905    1905    
                                                                                                                             ......... (Rupees in '000) .............

National Bank of Pakistan A1+ 200 1,843
Habib Bank Ltd A1+ 1,733 36,172
MCB Bank Ltd A1+ 578 129
Bank Islami A1+ 2,951 41
Bank Al Habib Ltd A1+ 2,792 187
Silk Bank A-2 504 504
Other Banks A1+ 1,670 1,979

Total 10,428 40,855

41.2 Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they
fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its
liabilities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial
liabilities as they fall due. The Company’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible,
that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Company's reputation. The
following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments: 
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2019
Carrying
Amount

Contractual
cash flows

Six months or
less

Six to
twelve

months

Two to five
years

Non-Derivative ...................................................... (Rupees in '000) ........................................................

Financial liabilities

Liabilities against assets under
diminishing musharika
financing 619 619 349 270 —

Short Term Sponsors
Advances 83,180 83,180 — 83,180 —

Trade and Other Payables 209,952 209,952 209,952 —  —  

Short-term Borrowings and
Mark up Payable —  —  —  —  —  

296,665 296,665 213,584 83,450 —

 2018
Carrying 
Amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Six months or
less

Six to twelve 
months

Two to five
years

Financial liabilities at
amortized cost

...................................................... (Rupees in '000) ........................................................

Long-term financing-secured 3,128 3,128 552 590 1,986 

Short-term sponsors' advances 65,636 65,636 —  65,636 —  

Short-term borrowings 35,029 35,029 35,029 —  —  

Trade and other payables 163,561 163,561 163,561 —  —  

Accrued mark-up 4,500 4,500 4,500 —  —  

271,854 271,854 203,642 66,226 1,986

Derivative financial liabilities —  —  —  —  —  

271,854 271,854 203,642 66,226 1,986 

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of
mark-up rates effective at statement of financial position date (and includes both principal and interest
payable thereon). The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in note 18 to these financial statements. 

41.3 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market 
interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in
market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market.
Market risk comprises of currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk. The Company is exposed to
currency risk and interest rate risk only. 

41.3.1 Currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial asset or liability will fluctuate due to a change in
foreign exchange rates. 

It arises mainly where receivables and payables exist due to transactions entered into foreigncurrencies. 
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The Company is exposed to currency risk on purchase and borrowings and sales that are denominated in a
foreign currency (primarily U.S. Dollar). The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk is as follows: 

 2019                      2018                   
Rupees in US Dollars    Rupees in US Dollars

'000       in '000    '000      in '000    
Import Bills Payable (131,009) (820) (93,401) (754) 
Foreign currency bank accounts 21 0.131 21 0.169 

(130,988) (820)    (93,380) (754)

Following are the significant exchange rates applied during the year:
                                                                                                                               Statemnet of Fiancial

                                                                           Average rates                              Position date rate
2019  2018 2019   2018   

                                                                                ............ (Rupees in ‘000) ............          ............ (Rupees in ‘000) ............

US Dollars 140.83 121.60 159.76 123.95

Sensitivity analysis

A twenty nine percent change in Rupee against US Dollar at June 30, 2019 would have increased /
(decreased) equity and (decreased)/ increased post tax profit / loss by Rs. 0.639 million (2018: Rs. 3.268
million @ 5%). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remains constant.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2018.

41.3.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. Majority of the interest rate exposure arises from short and
long term borrowings from banks. At the statement of financial position date the interest rate profile of the
Company’s interest-bearing  financial instrument was as follows: 

                                                                                                                               Carrying amount              
2019 2018

                                                                                                                             (Rupees in '000)
Variable rate instruments
Financial liabilities 619 38,157

All borrowings bear variable interest rate and are indexed to KIBOR. Borrowing is generally determined on
the basis of business needs. 

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased / (decreased) the
equity and (decreased) / increased loss as of June 30, 2019 by Rs. 0.0044 million (2018: Rs. 0.2671
million). This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency rates, remain constant. 
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2018.

41.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The carrying amounts of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in the financial statements represents
their fair values. 

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through the
profit and loss account. Therefore a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect the profit
and loss account.
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41.4.1 Measurement Of Fair Values

Management engage an independent external expert / valuer to carry out valuation of its non-financial
assets (i.e. Land and Building) and obtain rate from financial institution to value derivative financial
instruments. Involvement of external valuers is decided upon by management. Selection criteria include
market knowledge, reputation, independence and whether professional standards are maintained.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and uses observable market data as far as possible. Fair values are
categorized into different levels in fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques
as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value
hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value
hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the 
management recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. There were no transfers between different levels of fair
values mentioned above.

30-Jun-19
Carrying Amount Fair Value

Loans and 
receivable

Other
financial
assets

Liabilities at
fair value

through profit
and loss

Other
Financial
Liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Long term deposits 6,936 —   —   —   6,936 —   6,936 —   
Trade debts-considered good 71,201 —   —   —   71,201 —   71,201 —   
Loan, advances, trade
deposits and short term
prepayments

88,439 —   —   —   88,439 —   88,439 —   

Other receivables 33,479 —   —   —   33,479 —   33,479 —   
Cash and bank balances 10,428 —   —   —   10,428 —   10,428 —   
Financial liabilities
measured at fair value
- Derivative financial liabilities —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   
Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value
Long-term financing-secured —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   
Trade and other payables —   —   —   765,383 765,383 —   758,607 —   
Short-term sponsors'
advances

—   —   —   83,180 83,180 —   83,180 —   

Short-term borrowings-
secured

—   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   

Current portion of non-current
liabilities-secured

—   —   —   619 619 —   619 —   

Accrued mark-up —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   
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30-Jun-18

Carrying Amount Fair Value

Loans and 
receivable

Other
financial
assets

Liabilities at
fair value

through profit
and loss

Other
Financial
Liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets not
measured at fair value

Long term deposits 6,936 —   —   —   6,936 —   6,936 —   

Trade debts-considered good 103,498 —   —   —   103,498 —   103,498 —   

Loan, advances, trade
deposits and short term
prepayments

63,174 —   —   —   63,174 —   63,174 —   

Other receivables 65,654 —   —   —   65,654 —   65,654 —   

Cash and bank balances 40,951 —   —   —   40,951 —   40,951 —   

Financial liabilities
measured at fair value

- Derivative financial liabilities —   —   —   —   —   —   —   —   

Financial liabilities not
measured at fair value

Long-term financing-secured —   —   —   (1,986) (1,986) —   (1,986) —   

Trade and other payables —   —   —   (697,659) (697,659) —   (697,659) —   

Short-term sponsors'
advances

—   —   —   (65,636) (65,636) —   (65,636) —   

Short-term borrowings-
secured

—   —   —   (35,029) (35,029) —   (35,029) —   

Current portion of non-current
liabilities-secured

—   —   —   (1,142) (1,142) —   (1,142) —   

Accrued mark-up —   —   —   (4,500) (4,500) —   (4,500) —   

The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities
measured at fair value:

Assets measured 
at fair value

Date of
valuation

Valuation approach and inputs used Inter-relationship between
significant unobservable

inputs and fair value
measurement

- Land and Building 19-Sep-15 The valuation model is based on price per square feet
for building and per acre for land. In determining the
valuations for land and buildings, the valuer refers to
current market conditions, structure, sale prices of
comparable land in similar location adjusted for
differences in key attributes such as land size and
inquires with numerous independent local estate
agents / realtors in the vicinity to establish the present
market value. The fair valuation of land and building are
considered to represent a level 3 valuation based on
significant non-observable inputs being the location
and condition of the assets.

The fair value are subject to
change owing to changes in
input. However, the
management does not expect
there to be a material sensitivity 
to the fair values arising from
the non-observable inputs.

Liabilities measured at fair value
Derivative financial liabilities
- Forward exchange contract The fair value of forward exchange contracts is

determined based on the forward exchange rates as at
reporting date. The fair value of forward exchange
contract are included in level 2 in the fair value
hierarchy. However at statement of financial position
date no forward exchange contract.
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Management assessed that the fair values of cash & cash equivalent and short-term deposits, other
receivable, trade receivables, trade payables, short term borrowing and other current liabilities closely
approximate their carrying amounts largely due to short-term maturities of these instruments. For long term
deposit asset and long term liabilities, management consider that their carrying values approximates fair
value owing to credit standing of counterparties and interest payable on borrowings are market rate. The fair 
value of the Land and Building on freehold land are determined by an independent valuer based on price
per square feet and price per acre and current replacement cost method adjusted for depreciation factor for
existing asset in use. The resulting fair value is a level 3 fair value measurement. Fair values of investment
in joint venture is disclosed in note 7 investments.

41.5 Capital risk management

The objective of the Company when managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders; and
to maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its businesses.

The Company manages its capital structure by monitoring return on net assets and makes adjustments to it
in the light of changes in economic conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Company may adjust the amount of dividend to the shareholders or issue bonus / new shares.

The Company is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

42. GENERAL

42.1 Corresponding Figures

As stated in note# 5 due to recent changes brought about in Companies Act 2017, some of the previous
period balances have been rearranged/reclassified in the year 2018. However there have been no
significant reclassification/ rearrangement in the current year 2019.

42.2 Date of authorisation for issue

These financial statements were authorized for issue on August 19, 2019 by the Board of Directors of the
Company.

Hafiz Abdul Majid Hafiz Abdul Sami Muhammad Musab
Chief  Executive Director Manager Finance & Accounts

75Committed to Excellence 



Pattern of Shareholding 
As on June 30, 2019

                    No. of                                                    Having Shares
Shareholders From To Shares Held Percentage

355 1 100 8133 0.0147
384 101 500 127632 0.2300
209 501 1000 167639 0.3021
340 1001 5000 890009 1.6041

91 5001 10000 678599 1.2230
25 10001 15000 309802 0.5584
35 15001 20000 624964 1.1264
12 20001 25000 278217 0.5014
15 25001 30000 415219 0.7484

6 30001 35000 198056 0.3570
12 35001 40000 457705 0.8249

4 40001 45000 165484 0.2983
3 45001 50000 143254 0.2582
6 50001 55000 316365 0.5702
3 55001 60000 172043 0.3101
1 60001 65000 62500 0.1126
2 65001 70000 137052 0.2470
1 70001 75000 75000 0.1352
4 75001 80000 311307 0.5611
3 85001 90000 260498 0.4695
1 90001 95000 90703 0.1635
1 100001 105000 103583 0.1867
2 110001 115000 227386 0.4098
1 115001 120000 119993 0.2163
1 120001 125000 124556 0.2245
2 140001 145000 287940 0.5190
1 145001 150000 148722 0.2680
1 155001 160000 159171 0.2869
2 165001 170000 334047 0.6021
1 170001 175000 172643 0.3112
1 180001 185000 183076 0.3300
3 185001 190000 568982 1.0255
2 195001 200000 396239 0.7141
3 200001 205000 604239 1.0890
1 225001 230000 227388 0.4098
1 240001 245000 243301 0.4385
1 260001 265000 261492 0.4713
3 270001 275000 812910 1.4651
2 285001 290000 575480 1.0372
1 310001 315000 311256 0.5610
1 340001 345000 341745 0.6159
5 345001 350000 1726446 3.1116
1 375001 380000 379190 0.6834
3 400001 405000 1208520 2.1781
1 420001 425000 423800 0.7638
2 435001 440000 877716 1.5819
1 485001 490000 487500 0.8786
1 565001 570000 568258 1.0242
1 570001 575000 574040 1.0346
1 605001 610000 606371 1.0929
1 625001 630000 627212 1.1304
1 745001 750000 747350 1.3470
1 785001 790000 788782 1.4216
1 830001 835000 833761 1.5027
1 860001 865000 862258 1.5541
1 930001 935000 931322 1.6785
1 1060001 1065000 1060359 1.9111
1 1065001 1070000 1067213 1.9234
1 1085001 1090000 1088021 1.9610
1 1125001 1130000 1127500 2.0321
1 1310001 1315000 1311896 2.3644
1 1380001 1385000 1381175 2.4893
1 1775001 1780000 1775453 3.1999
1 1820001 1825000 1822612 3.2849
1 2215001 2220000 2216551 3.9949
1 2820001 2825000 2821602 5.0854
1 3020001 3025000 3021317 5.4454
1 3525001 3530000 3525755 6.3545
1 4635001 4640000 4636615 8.3566
1 4890001 4895000 4891378 8.8158

    1579 Company Total   55484303   100.000
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Categories of Shareholders 
As at June 30, 2019 

{as per the requirements of Clause xvi(j) of Code of Corporate Governance-2012}

Percentageof
No of Shares Shareholding

1 Associated companies, undertakings and 
related parties (name wise detail) —   —   

2 Mutual funds (name wise detail)
2.1 M/s First Crescent Modaraba 375 0.00%
2.2 Golden Arrow Selected Stocks Fund Limited 391,745 0.71%
2.3 CDC - Trustee AKD Opportunity Fund 234,675 0.42%
2.4 National Bank of Pakistan-Trustee Department UNIT Fund 1,331,896 2.40%

1,958,691 3.53%

3 Directors their spouses and minor children (name wise detail)
3.1 Hafiz Abdul Majid 4,636,615 8.36%

Mrs. Fareeda Majid W/o Hafiz Abdul Majid 1,822,612 3.28%
3.2 Hafiz Abdul Haseeb 2,224,768 4.01%
3.3 Hafiz Abdul Waheed 5,822,700 10.49%

Mrs. Najma Waheed W/o Hafiz Abdul Waheed 3,427,973 6.18%
3.4 Yusuf Mohammed Yusuf Najibi 3,525,755 6.35%
3.5 Mr. Arshad Ahmad 2,262,953 4.08%

Mrs. Bilquees Ahmed W/o Arshad Ahmed 879,485 
3.6 Mr. Mohammad Hafiz 574,040 1.03%
3.7 Mr. A. Aziz Ehsaq A. Rehman 3,021,317 5.45%
3.8 Mr. Nabeel Abdul Rehman Arif 345,287 0.62%
3.9 Hafiz Abdul Sami 938,468 1.69%
3.10 Hafiz Abdul Aleem 896,072 1.62%

30,378,045 54.75%

4 Executives —   —   

5 Public sector companies and corporations
5.2 National Investment Trust Limited 128,927 0.23%

128,927 0.23%

6 Banks, Development Financial Institutions, 
Non-Banking Finance Companies, Insurance Companies, 
Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds
6.1 IDBP (ICP Unit) 5,952 0.01%
6.2 National Bank of Pakistan 764 0.00%

6,716 0.01%

7 Shareholders holding five percent or more 
voting rights (Name wise detail) —   —   

8 Others 23,011,924 41.47%

TOTAL 55,484,303 100%
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